MINUTES OF MEETING OF THE
NORTH HARRIS COUNTY REGIONAL WATER AUTHORITY

September 26, 2001

The Board of Directors (the "Board") of the North Harris County Regiona Water Authority (the
"Authority") met in specid sesson, opentothe public, a 7:00 p.m. onthe 26th day of September, 2001, at
the Authority's office a 3648 FM 1960 West, Houston, Texas, a public meeting place within the
boundaries of the Authority; whereupon, theroll was caled of the duly congtituted officers and members of
the Board, to-wit:

Alan J. Rendl - Presdent
Jm Burke - Vice President
Lenox A. Sigler - Secretary
Jm Pulliam - Treasurer

Dwight "Clint" Moore

Assgant Secretary

All members of the Board were present, thus congtituting a quorum.  Also attending the meeting
were: Mr. Ed Shackdford, P.E., Generd Manager for the Authority; Ms. Robin S. Bobbitt and
Mr. Andrew Johnson of Johnson Radcliffe Petrov LLP, atorneysfor the Authority; and severa membersof
the public. A copy of the Sign-in sheets for those in atendance at the meeting are attached hereto.

WHEREUPON, the meeting was called to order and evidence was presented that public notice of
the meeting had been given in compliance with the law. The posted notices of the meeting are attached
hereto.

REVIEW AND DISCUSS PROPSOED TERM SHEET TO THE CITY OF HOUSTON

Director Rendl announced that tonight's meeting was being held to review and discuss a proposed
term sheet to the City of Houston (the"COH") for the purchase of surfacewater. Upon motion by Director
Burke, seconded by Director Sigler, after full discussion and the question being put to the Board, the Board
voted unanimoudy to remain in open session to discuss the proposed term shedt.

Mr. Shackelford then reviewed the draft of the proposed term sheet with the Board, a copy of
which is attached hereto. Mr. Shackelford explained thet it was sSimilar to the term sheet used by West
Harris County Regiond Water Authority (the "WHCRWA") in its negotiations with the COH, but with
certain revisons to address specific issues reated to the Authority. Ms. Bobbitt explained that the Texas
Water Code provision to be cited in Principle 111 setsforth provisonsand requirementsfor handling water
supply intimes of emergency and system failure. Director M oore then questioned problemsthe COH had
recently experienced with providing water to Gaveston. Mr. Shackelford and Mr. Johnson stated that
Galveston experienced water supply problemsdueto alinefalure and insufficient Szing of lines, and not due
to the inability of the COH to supply water. Director Moore suggested that the Authority include some
specific provisonsin the term sheet to prevent the COH from treating the Authority differently in times of
shortages or supply failures based on the fact that entitieswithin the Authority have extensive groundweter



supply systems. Ms. Bobhitt explained that the applicable provisonsof the TexasWater Codetake care of
that issue and that any contract the Authority would negotiate with the COH would aso address such
meatter. Director Moorethen reiterated that he believed additiona provisionsshould beincluded intheterm
sheset to protect the Authority from being treated differently during emergency periods or at times of water
shortages.

Director Moore then returned to Principle 11 concerning theincluson of theterm "COH ordinance
rate’ gating that he would like an annud limit or some type of price cap protection on the ordinance rate
reflected in theterm sheet. Director Moore stated that any increasein the ordinance rate should be limited
to 1-2% annualy according to the analysis prepared by Pate Engineers, Inc. Director Moore added that
the Authority should also have the option to discontinue its contract with the COH at any time. Director
Burke commented that a methodology for increasing the ordinance rate needed to be determined and
included in the contract so that the Texas Natural Resource Conservation Commission (the"TNRCC") is
not the Authority's only option for gppedling rate increases. Extensve discussion regarding the ordinance
rate issue and provison for future rate increases in a COH contract then ensued. Director Rendl
emphasized that the COH hasnot shown ahigtory of increasing rates on afrequent or unfair basis. Director
Moore continued to stress the need to include aspecific percentage limit for future ordinance rateincreases
in the term sheet.

Director Burke then expressed the need and importance of the Authority initiating negotiationswith
the COH and getting them to the samelevel asthat of the WHCRWA.. Director M oore then stated that the
WHCRWA term sheet may not bethe modd for the Authority tofollow. Director Rendl stressed the need
for the Authority to be reasonable in order to get to the negotiating table and for detailsof acontract to be
formulated and negotiated. Director Moore stated that the proposed term sheet does not address the big
issues of price, rate increases and rationing and is no different from the contract the COH has with other
jurisdictions. Director Rendl then stated thet in his opinion, it would be extremdly difficult for the COH to
discriminate againgt the Authority. Director Moore stated that the Board should want to get the best dedl
possiblefor itscondtituents. Mr. Johnson interjected that the term sheet isabeginning point for negotiations
andthat al of thedetailswill beincluded in adraft contract document. Director Moore then suggested that
"the ordinance rate’ be deleted and replaced with "an agreed rate”’ or "a not to exceed ordinance rate.”
Further discussion of the matter then ensued. Mr. Johnson then suggested that "the ordinance rate" in
Principle 11 be replaced with "an ordinance rate.” The Board agreed to such revision.

Discusson then ensued concerning the usage of a "sysemwide' rate by the COH.
Mr. Shackelford noted that the COH was looking into the concept of using "area rates," but that no
determination had yet been made. Director Burke added that the Authority should work with the
WHCRWA in negotiating with the COH. Mr. Johnson dated that determining a methodology for
implementing future rate increases will be a critical negotiation issue.

The Board next discussed the "take or pay™ concept reflected in the term sheet. Director Moore
stressed that he did not want the Authority to be stuck with a"take or pay" term and asked if there was
languagethat could beincluded intheterm sheet that would providethe Authority with flexibility to obtainits
water from another source a some point in the future.



Director Moore then reminded the Board of Mr. Oradat's comments during the January AWBD
Conferencein San Antonio that the COH might bewilling to consider putting the water revenuefundsinto a
Separate account so that the usage of such funds by the COH can be appropriately monitored.
Mr. Johnson then pointed out that having a*system-wide" rate somewhat negates the need for thistype of
separate fund accounting. Director M oore emphasized that he wanted to have away to monitor whet the
COH does with the dollars raised from the ordinancerates paid by the Authority so that such funds can be
utilized for the congruction of future infrastructure and capitd projects for the sysem that serves the
Authority.

Director Sigler then expressed concern regarding the Authority being totaly dependent on the
COH for its source of water and stated that having another source of water would be the best scenario for
the Authority. Director Sigler added that a dua system of supply would aso be optima, but may be too
codly.

Director Moore then asked the attorneys to review the possibility of having the COH establish a
"set asdefund” or "lock box" for revenuesreceived from water rates paid by the Authority to insurethat the
Authority's money is not used on other COH projects. Extensve discussion regarding such issue then
ensued. Mr. Johnson then suggested that the Authority may want Mr. Stowe, arate consultant, to review
therateinformation prepared by the engineering consulting team. After abrief discussion, it was determined
that a rate consultant was not a good use of Authority funds.

All members of the audience exited the meeting with the exception of Ms. Bland, Ms. Malek and
Ms. Milne.

After further discussion of the proposed term sheet, the Board requested that the Authority's
atorneys prepare arevised term sheet for distribution at the Board's October 2™ meeting. Director Rendl
then requested that a microphone be available a the October 2™ meseting. Mr. Shackelford stated that
Ms. Payne had made arrangements to have the October 2™ meeting videotaped.

There being no further businessto come before the Board, the meeting was adjourned at 9:10 pm.

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 9th day of October, 2001.

/9Lenox A. Sigler

Secretary, Board of Directors

(SEAL)

K:\NHCRWA\Minutes\Special -9-26-01.DOC
#853.0000



